M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 19, 2002
9:10 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 35, Side A
SFC 02 # 35, Side B
SFC 02 # 36, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approxinmately 9:10 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Lenman

Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Also Attending: MKE MAHER, Director, Admnistrative Services
Division, Departnment of Revenue; NANCI A JONES, Director,
Per manent Fund Di vi dend Divi sion, Departnent of Revenue; DAN EL R
FAUSKE, CEQ Executive Director, Al aska Housing Fi nance Corporation,
Department of Revenue; LES CAMPBELL, Budget Director, Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation, Departnent of Revenue; WES WEIR,
Director, Public Housing Division, Alaska Housing Finance
Cor poration, Departnment of Revenue; ROBERT L. BREAN, Director,
D vision of Research & Rural Devel opnent, Al aska Housi ng Fi nance
Corporation; JOHN BITNEY, Legislative Liaison, Alaska Housing
Fi nance Corporation, Departnment of Revenue; ROBERT STALNAKER,
Manager, Information Systens, Division of Adm nistrative Services,
Depart ment of Environnmental Conservation; NANCY SLAGLE, Director,
Di vision of Admi nistrative Services, Departnent of Transportation
and Public Facilities; KURT PARKAN, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of
the Comm ssioner, Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchorage: JOHN MALLONEE, Data
Processi ng Manager, Child Support Enforcenent Division, Departnent

SFC- 02 (1) 03/ 19/ 02



of Revenue; From Fairbanks: MARTIN OIT, Chief, Planning &
Adm ni strative Servi ces, Nor t her n Regi on, Depar t ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities;

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 247- REAPPROPRI ATI ONS & CAPI TAL APPROPRI ATI ONS

The Conmittee heard testinony fromthe Departnent of Revenue, the
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation, the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation, and the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities. No action was taken, and the bill was held in
Conmittee.

#sbh247

SENATE BI LL NO. 247

"An Act making capital appropriations and reappropriations,
and capitalizing funds; naking appropriations under art. 12X
sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of Al aska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for an
effective date."

This was the fifth hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Departnent of Revenue

M KE MAHER, Director, Adm nistrative Services Division, Departnent
of Revenue, informed the Commttee that he would be facilitating
the Departnent’s presentations.

Per manent Fund Dividend El ectroni c | magi ng Server Upgrade
$80, 000 PFD Fund

Ref erence No.: 35813

Proj ect Type: Equi prment

Category: General Governnent

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002-06/30/2003

The Dividend Application Imaging System will be upgraded to
facilitate higher productivity, Ilower “downtine” due to
har dware and software failures, and reduced storage costs.
One-time project

SFC- 02 (2) 03/ 19/ 02



NANCI A, JONES, Director, Permanent Fund D vidend Division,
Departnment of Revenue, explained that the Division s inmage server,
whi ch stores the Division s database system is reaching “the end
of its useful life,” and that the installation of a new M crosoft-
Intel system woul d | ower mai ntenance expenses, provide for future
program expandabi lity, and accommopdate D vi sion grow h.

Chil d Support Enforcenent Casel oad Managenent System Phase 2
$1, 500, 000
$990, 000 Fed Crypts
$510, 000 GF/ Prgm
Ref erence No.: 35730
Proj ect Type: Information Systens
Cat egory: Ceneral Governnent
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002-06/30/2007

This project will elimnate two critical problens within the
child support enforcenent conputer system (NSTAR). First, it
will renove outdated proprietary software used for

i nput/output calls. This software does not function correctly
with new upgrades to the mainframe operating software.
Secondly, the rewite wll concentrate on nmaking batch
prograns nore efficient to allow the nightly batch process to
be conpleted in the required tinmefrane.

State Match Required

Phased Proj ect

JOHN MALLONEE, Data Processing Manager, Child Support Enforcenent
Di vi sion, Departnent of Revenue, testified via tel econference from
Anchorage to informthe Commttee that this request would provide
the funds required to conplete a two-year project to replace an
obsolete piece of proprietary software that manifests problens
whenever upgrades are conducted on the mainframe conputer. He
explained that this software is responsible for “input and out put
calls” to the conputer, and that the current software, which the
manuf acturer no | onger supports, does not communi cate properly with
new prograns. He continued that, in addition to replacing the
software, the Division nust inprove the efficiency of the nightly
batch program that generates required nonthly, quarterly, and
yearly reports.

M. Ml lonee furthered that this single conputer systemstores the
Division's data information base, and when the system does not
function properly, none of the D vision's prograns are accessible.
He stated that when this occurs, the data inaccessibility creates
hardshi ps for both the staff and the public.

SFC- 02 (3) 03/ 19/ 02



Senator Austernman asked for further information about the fina
phase of the project.

M. Mallonee explained that the necessary upgrades to the system
shoul d be conpleted in FY 03, providing that the federal governnent
does not invoke any delays, as he continued, every phase of the
project requires federal approval.

Senator Hoffrman asked whether this upgrade would reduce the
Departnent’s current seven to ten-day response tinme that is causing
public concern.

M. Mllonee asked for further information to ascertain whether
comput er processing or workl oad demands are the cause of the del ay
in the response tinme. He noted that usually data is processed
wi thin one day; therefore, a conputer-generated backl og of seven to
ten days is not likely; however, he surm sed that the reason for a
delay mght be due to the increasing ratio of caseload to
caseworker. He expressed that each caseworker is responsible for
approximately 1,300 cases.

Senator Hoffrman restated the concern by asking whether or not
conpletion of this project would shorten “the wait-tinme” for
account status inquiries.

M. Mallonee responded that this project would ensure that the
conputer systemwould renmain operational to provide pertinent data
to the caseworkers. He contended that the delay concern appears to
be a caseload rather than a conputer problem

M. Mher interjected that a separate request is being introduced
to increase, by five, the nunber of D vision caseworkers in order
to nore efficiently nmanage the growi ng nunber of cases. He inforned
the Conmttee that caseworkers in the states of Wshington and
Oregon manage approximately 600 or 700 cases, respectively per
casewor ker

Chi |l d Support Enforcenent Conputer Repl acenent Project-Phase 3
$195, 000
$128, 700 Fed Rcpts
$ 66,300 G-/ Prgm
Ref erence No.: 35729
Project Type: Information Systens
Category: General Governnent
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002-06/30-2007
Intent is to continue the CSED conputer replacenent project

SFC- 02 (4) 03/ 19/ 02



initiated in FY 00. The agency objective is the ultimte
repl acenent of 250 antiquated personal conputers (pc’s). Mire
than half of all pc’s currently in use at CSED have exceeded
their useful lives.

State Match Required

Phased Proj ect

M. Mallonee stated that this request would all ow approximately 79
outdated conputers to be replaced with new ones. He stated that
five nine-year-old | aser printers and three conmmunication sw tches
are also in need of replacenent. He noted that, because of their
age, it is not economcally feasible to repair these itens.

Senat or Austernman asked whether this is an on-going equipnent
repl acenent request.

M. Mallonee responded that this request is larger than usual
because the Division did not present an equipnment replacenent
request in FY 02. He estimated that requests in the anount of
$100,000 on a two-year cycle mght becone standard, because
equi pnent purchased “at the sane tine, tends to fail at the sane
time.” He stated that the Departnent strives to properly maintain
its equipnent is an econom ¢ manner; however, he noted that over
time, replacenent is the only option. He explained that these
conputers link to the mainframe which houses the Departnent’s
report forms and that any required forns are downl oaded and printed
on the laser printers. He noted that approximately 65 percent of
the Division’s 300 conputers have been replaced, and that the
remai ni ng conputers nust be replaced within the next two years.

Senat or Lerman asked whether the State’ s purchasing policy allows
the Division to purchase equi pnent at a conpetitive price.

M. Mall onee responded that personal conputers (pc’s) are purchased
through the State contract process at a conpetitive price. He noted
that, at tinmes, conparable conputers could be purchased, on sale,
for approximately 15 percent |ess; however, he considers the price
the State pays a fair price.

Senat or Hof fman commented that this request specifies that the cost
per conputer is approxi mtely $2,000, which, he opined, is a high
price.

M. Mallonee agreed that |ess expensive conputers are avail abl e;
however, he qualified that these pc’'s are “heavy-duty machi nes”
with nmore powerful processors than required for normal honme usage.
He stated that the price also includes the required software.

SFC- 02 (5) 03/ 19/ 02



Senat or Hof f man asked the type of software required.

M. Mallonee responded that the software includes the Wndows 98
operating system Mcrosoft Ofice that is used by the majority of
State agencies; and software that enables communication with the
mai nfrane conputer as well as the networking card that enables the
conputers to comruni cate with each other.

Senat or Hof fman asserted that the price of the conputers is not
driven by the Wndows 98 operating systemas that software system
is considered to be “fairly old now” He noted that newer operating
systens are avail abl e.

M. Mallonee concurred that newer operating systens are avail abl e;
however, he stated that the Wndows 98 programis currently used
t hroughout the Division, and that the expense to upgrade 300
conputer operating systens would exceed the cost of purchasing
these 79 conputers.

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Cor poration

DANI EL R FAUSKE, CEQ Executive Director, Al aska Housing Finance
Cor poration, Departnment of Revenue, stated that all the projects
presented in the Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC) capital

budget are funded by federal US Departnment of Housing and U ban
Devel opnent (HUD) funds or, to a |esser degree, fromthe United
States Departnent of Energy, rather than by the State’ s genera

fund. He noted that additional revenue is generated “by AHFC
corporate earnings that are nade available as part of the asset
transfer plan” as arranged with the State.

M. Fauske explained that the transfer plan was established in 1995
and nost recently updated in 1998 wth | anguage specifying that,
“the Legislature intends to insure the prudent managenent of the
Al aska Housi ng Finance Corporation to protect its excellent debt
rating by the nation’s financial community and to preserve it as a
val uabl e asset of the State.” He stated that “to acconplish this
goal, the sum of the withdrawals for the repaynent of bonds for
transfer to the general fund and for expenditures on Corporate
funded capital projects should not exceed the Corporation’s net
income for the preceding fiscal year. The Al aska Housi ng Fi nance
Corporation projects that $103 mllion will be nade available in
each fiscal year.” He continued that, “this agreenent has been
reaffirmed in the past, and during each session, when the
Legi sl ature has authorized AHFC to i ssue bonds, and debts for State
capi tal projects, which additionally includes the tobacco
securi zation bond, first issued two years ago.”

SFC- 02 (6) 03/ 19/ 02



M. Fauske expressed that “for FY 03, AHFC and its Board of
Directors have approved a transfer amount of $96.3 million which is
the audited net incone figure fromlast year.” He stated that this
is a refection that AHFC “had a good year in the State s housing
mar ket . ”

M. Fauske explained that, “the transfer plan | anguage calls for a
sum not to exceed AHFC net incone, but a level of $103 nmillion has
been provided annually as a cash paynent to the general fund
paynents on bonds issued by AHFC for State capital projects, and
for other State expenditures.”

M. Fauske qualified that AHFC s “switch to a net incone figure was
based on recent concerns that were expressed in reports by the
Legislative Audit D vision, national credit rating agencies,” as
wel | as AHFC auditors and financial anal ysts.

M. Fauske continued that for FY 03, “$51 nmillion of the transfer
plan is obligated as debt service paynents on bonds that were
i ssued by AHFC on behalf of the State for $300 million in State
capital projects that have already been appropriated by the
Legislature.” He noted that these projects include: “public schoo
construction, University of Alaska facilities, ports and harbors,
arnories, and many other projects.” He specified that the remnaining
FY 03 bal ance of $45,300,000 would provide funding as follows:
$23, 298,200 is designated for the AHFC projects being presented in
today’s AHFC budget request testinony to the Commttee; and
approximately $22 mllion is designated for other agency projects
including $21,400,000 for the Departnent of Environmenta
Conservation’ s proposed water and sewer projects.

M. Fauske informed the Commttee that when determ ning the “AHFC
project requests as part of the transfer bond anmpbunt based on net
income,” the Corporation investigated options to mnimze the
anount of noney being requested for AHFC s FY 03 projects. He noted
that the funding levels for projects such as |owincone
weat heri zati on, supplenental housing, and seni or housing projects
have been set at the levels authorized in the FY 02 budget;
however, he clarified that the funding |evels requested for
honel ess assi stance grants have been increased from $250,000 to
$500, 000 in the Mental Health budget.

M. Fauske stressed that the Corporation endeavored to mtigate the
i npact of the reduction in the AHFC transfer paynment anount, and he
asserted that the proposed AHFC bond project would allow AHFC to
conplete its ten-year construction and renovation plan by securing
“both Corporate and federal dollars to provide $55 mllion in order
to conpletely finish the entire backlog of AHFC public housing

SFC- 02 (7) 03/ 19/ 02



construction projects.” He stated that the alternative would be to
present a list of construction and renovation projects requiring
eight to twelve mllion dollars of corporate funds. He el aborated
that this request entails conbining $4,943,000 in corporate funds
with federal funds to provide the first year’'s debt service
paynent. He contended that, “this would be the ultimte phasing
approach to spread dollars around nore for the State whil e taking
advantage of the current interest rate environnent.”

LES CAMPBELL, Budget Director, Al aska Housing Fi nance Corporation
Departnent of Revenue, noted that Commttee nenbers have been
provided with the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation Executive
Budget Sunmmary “Results-Oriented,” Proposed FY2003 Draft Capita
Budget booklet, dated Decenber 15, 2001 [copy on file] which
details the AHFC projects being proposed.

PHD Construction Program

$55, 249, 800 Bond Proceeds

Ref erence No.: 36602

Project Type: Renewal and Repl acenent

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002-06/30/2007

The Public Housing Division (PHD) Construction Program
utilizes federal funds and bond proceeds to conplete the
Corporation’s 10-year plan to renovate and noderni ze AHFC s
inventory of public housing units. This new program wil|l
| everage federal funds to replace or renovate schedul ed
proj ects.

M. Canpbell stated that this bond proposal “bundles together the
remai ni ng public housi ng construction proj ects” in t he
Corporation’s ten-year nodernization plan. He noted that the
projects’ descriptions and funding histories are included in the
bookl et, and he detail ed each of the ten projects included in this
bond bill as follow

Seni or & Statew de Renovation & Repl acenent
Ref er ence #36607
$6, 500, 000

M. Canpbell explained that this project would provide inproved
bui l di ng security and accessibility; nodifications to accomodate
individuals who are physically challenged; provide for energy
ef ficiency and mechani cal systens upgrades; and provide site and
general physical inprovenents.

SFC- 02 (8) 03/ 19/ 02



Senat or W ken asked for further i nformati on about t he
i mpl ementation of this $55 mllion bondi ng package.

M. Canpbell explained that this $55 nillion bond package would
provide the total funding necessary to conplete the upgrades and
renovati on needs for the ten projects identified in the request.

Senator W /I ken asked whether the funding needs of these ten
projects totals $55 mllion.

M. Canmpbell stated that is correct.

Senator W/ ken specified that the sale of these bonds woul d provide
the funding required for the ten projects.

M. Canmpbell concurred, and he asserted that corporate receipts and
federal funds would fund the bond s debt service.

Senator W/ ken asked whether the corporate receipts would be
conprised of the “general fund annual dividend.”

M. Canpbell affirnmed that these funds would involve the annua
AHFC di vi dend.

Senat or Austerman asked whether the identified admnistrative
expense that anobunts to 21.7 percent of the total project cost is
wi thin a normal range for this conponent.

M. Canpbell responded that AHFC bases its adm nistrative cost
estimates on such things as historical AHFC project managenent
expenses conbined with inspection and transportati on expenses.

Senator Austerman noted that additional adm nistrative expenses
woul d be incurred by the inclusion of the contingency fund el enent
of $603, 452, as specified on page 3-6 of the booklet. He stated
that this inclusion would increase the adm nistrative percentage of
the total project to approximately 23 percent.

M. Canpbel |l explained that the contingency el enent reflects as yet
unidentified projects that are |likely, but were indeterm nate when
the renovation plan was devel oped. He stated that the contingency
anount is based on prior projects’ histories.

VWES WEIR, Director, Public Housing D vision, A aska Housing Finance
Corporation, Departnent of Revenue, stated that while Senator
Austerman’s question is valid, the cost determ nation nethod used
by AHFC is “substantially nore econom cal” than nethods used by
other State agencies as it allocates a higher percentage rate

SFC- 02 (9) 03/ 19/ 02



toward construction. He furthered that the wusual allocation
specified for construction expense is 70 cents of every dollar
however, AHFC, with its overhead cost limt of 21 and 24 cents of
every dollar, provides 76 to 79 cents of every dollar for
construction.

M. Weir expressed that overhead is a “very flexible itenf as the
adm ni strative overhead percent of cost incurred by a $15, 000
project is significantly higher than that of a mllion dollar
project. He noted that several small projects are included in this
bond request, and he furthered that the determ nation nethod
utilized by the Corporation allows the construction departnent to
“realize nore significant savings” pertaining to the admnistrative
aspect of a project than other State agenci es.

Chugach Manor Renovati on
Ref erence #36608
$5, 435, 000

M. Canpbell explained that this 120-unit senior housing facility
is located in Anchorage, and although this project is included in
t he bond package funding, this is the third phase of a renovation
pl an that includes upgrades to other facilities in the conplex. He
stated that the renovation work includes such things as sidewal k
repair; kitchen and bathroom upgrades; carpet and vinyl
repl acenent; unit entry and interior doors upgrades; electrica
upgr ades; ventilation and control upgr ades; wat er heat er
repl acenent; stormdrain relocation; and interior painting.

Senat or Aust erman asked whet her each of the ten projects included
in this bond package would have a 21 to 24 percent adm nistrative
over head cost.

M. Weir responded that “it is flexible based on the size of the
project; however, that would be a safe assunption.”

d aci er Vi ew Renovati on
Ref erence #36609
$1, 860, 000

M. Canpbell stated that inprovenents to this 30-unit senior
housi ng conplex in Seward would conplete interior renovations;
i nprove building and apartnment accessibility; inprove resident
living environnents; reduce long-term operating costs; renovate
bat hroons and kitchens; install new energy-saving |ighting
fixtures, and upgrade energency conponents to inprove fire safety
protection.

SFC- 02 (10) 03/19/02



Sea Vi ew Terrace Renovati on
Ref erence No.: 36610
$3, 508, 000

M. Canpbell stated that this 49-unit senior housing facility in
Ket chi kan would receive inprovenments simlar to those of the
G acier View Renovation project. He stated that funding requests
for this project have previously been deferred; however, the
buil ding, while still usable, would not reach its 30-year life
Wi t hout these repairs.

Senat or Hof f man asked the cost of replacing rather than renovating
the facility.

M. Weir responded that the site evaluation includes an anal ysis on
the cost of repair verses the cost of replacenent based on a 30-
year timefrane. He stated that he would provide this information to
the Conmittee.

Senat or Hof fman cal cul ated the cost to renovate each of the units
to be $72,000. He suggested that the Conmmittee consider whether it
m ght be “nore econom cal to construct new’ wunits.

M. Weir clarified that the replacenent cost conparison pertaining
to this project is included in the report and is estimated to be
approximately $7 mllion. He explained that public construction in
areas such as Ketchi kan averages $200 a square foot based on the
fact that the State “is required to use Davis-Bacon wages, which
could be significantly higher in other communities.” He continued
that additionally, because AHFC is a | andlord adm ni stering the HUD
program AHFC is required to fund relocation costs for tenants as
wel|l as provide themthe opportunity to return to the facility upon
the conpletion of the renovation.

Senat or Lerman asked for confirmation that the $3.5 mllion estinmate
for this project includes relocation costs.

M. Weir affirned it does.

Senator Leman voiced that the approximate $70,000 per unit
renovati on expense seens high even with the inclusion of the
rel ocation factor.

M. Weir affirmed that the tenant relocation costs are included in
t he $70, 000 per unit renovation costs.

M. Fauske clarified that the renovation verses replacenent costs
conparison information is included on page 3-10 of the report.

SFC- 02 (11) 03/19/02



M. Canpbell informed the Commttee that professional assessnents
are conducted on each of the projects, and that the Corporation
could provide this information for Comrmttee review

Paci fic Terrace Repl acenent
Ref erence No.: 36611
$11, 426, 000

M. Canpbell stated that this project involves a 40-unit famly-
housi ng conpl ex i n Kodi ak of which 37 units would be denolished and
repl aced and three existing single-famly honmes woul d be renovat ed.
In addition, he continued, a nultipurpose building which would
i nclude an office and a mai ntenance area woul d be construct ed.

Senator Austerman affirnmed that these facilities are old and are in
need of replacenent. He expressed surprise that extensive exterior
wor k has been conducted on such things as sidewal ks, fuel tanks,
and parking lots during the previous two years as this work could
be danaged during the project denolition and reconstruction.

M. Wir responded that during the previous four years,
approximately $1.1 mllion has been spent at this conplex to renove
| eaki ng underground storage tanks and performrenedi al site work.
He stated that AHFC determned this expense to be necessary
regardl ess of whether replacenent or renovation nonies becane
avai |l abl e because of environnental and safety issues, and to keep
the facilities operational unti | repl acenent funds becane
avai |l abl e.

Senat or Hof f man asked the funding required to replace the 37-famly
units.

M. Weir responded that the work woul d be broken into two phases,
each totaling approximately $5.7 mllion, and that the multi-
pur pose buil di ng woul d cost approxi mately $500, 000.

Senator Hoffrman calculated that each famly unit would cost
approxi mately $250,000 based on approximately $11 nmillion being
designated for the housing units reconstruction.

M. Weir voiced that Senator Hoffnman’s estimate of cost is correct.
He explained that this “very high nunber” is the result of the
asbest os renoval abatenent effort that would be conducted during
the denolition and the need to address the conplex’ s significant
dr ai nage probl em caused by the conplex being built on bedrock. He
furthered that the drainage additionally nust be redirected away
from ot her housing in the area.

SFC- 02 (12) 03/19/02



M. Fauske informed the Conmttee that the AHFC Board of Directors
di scussed the high cost of replacing these units during the project
revi ew. He stated that alternate building options were
i nvestigated; however, federal HUD restrictions |limted the
options.

M. Wir explained that, although AHFC technically owns the
conpl ex, federal HUD requirenents associated with this site require
specific disposal perm ssion fromHUD. In addition, he noted that
HUD rental assistance is specific to this particular site.

Co-Chair Kelly asked the cost projected for the asbestos abatenent.

M. Weir commented that the cost of the asbestos abatenent is
currently unknown as the severity of the situation could not be

determ ned until the work begins. He furthered that no
determ nati on has been nade as to whether the asbestos could be
di sposed of at the Kodiak landfill or nust be shipped to Seattle

for disposal, as the quantity of the asbestos is the determ ning
factor.

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether the asbestos abatenent is required
because the asbestos contained in this conplex is “pliable” and
presents a health hazard or whether the nature of the project
mandates it.

M. Weir replied that the asbestos in the “units is non-pliable”
which neans that it is contained within tiling, joint conpounds,
and the ceiling and does not currently present a health hazard to
the occupants; however, he continued, when the buildings are
“di sassenbl ed,” the asbestos has the potential to becone pliable
and nust be properly handled. He continued that if sinple repairs
or renovations were involved, then covering the floor wth vinyl
woul d suffice; however, since this is a major construction project,
the State is obligated to renove the material .

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether the issue of asbestos abatenment is
bei ng re-addressed at the federal |evel, as he understands that the
danger invoked by asbestos has been over-exaggerated. He continued
that, while certain kinds of asbestos are known to be health
hazards, nost of the asbestos materials used in the United States
do not pose a hazard; yet, he asserted, mllions of dollars are
bei ng spent to contain the material. He stated that a multitude of
housi ng projects in the Unites States are required to spend noney
to contain asbestos that is not a health hazard.

M. Fauske replied that, as a nenber of the federal MIIennium

SFC- 02 (13) 03/19/02



Housi ng Comm ssion, he has traveled extensively throughout the
country conducting sem nars on such things as asbestos and | ead-
based paint, which are recogni zed as health hazards. He conti nued
that the Conmission is currently conpiling a report to present
recommendations to the federal governnment on these issues. He
confirmed that current regulations regarding these issues incur
addi ti onal expenses to the cost of renovation, especially when
preserving existing affordable housing. He stated that this is a
nati onwi de concern as it is very difficult to provide affordable
housi ng when this expense is incurred. He noted that nenbers of
Congress are also concerned about the high costs of housing
construction, and the question is how to provide affordabl e housing
when it is so expensive to construct or renovate. He stated that
t he Conm ssion woul d recommend that better solutions be “arrived at
to help with this problem across the country.” He assured the
Commttee that this would be addressed at the federal |evel.

SFC 02 # 35, Side B 09:58 AM

Co-Chair Kelly, noting the time, asked Commttee nmenbers to refrain
from aski ng questions about the projects being presented until the
end of the Corporation’s testinony. He stated that further
guestions about adm nistrative costs could be addressed directly to
AHFC after the neeting.

Capital Fund Program ( CFP)
Ref erence No.: 36612
$14, 251, 800

M. Canpbell stated that this program provides federal funds to
renovate and nodernize public housing, and that this funding
specially addresses housing units in Sitka and Juneau. He stated
that this project utilizes federal noney and exenplifies how
federal receipts would be used toward the debt service of this bond
package.

Pt arm gan Park Renovati on
Ref erence No.: 36613
$1, 784, 000

M. Campbell stated that the purpose of this project is to renovate
17 famly units in Anchorage and extend their useful life for an
additional 30 years. He stated that the renovation includes
el ectrical and nechanical upgrades, |ife safety upgrades, and
general site inprovenents including Anericans with Disabilities Act
(ADA) requirenents.

SFC- 02 (14) 03/19/02



Sunset Vi ew Renovati on
Ref erence No.: 36614
$1, 935, 000

M. Campbell stated that the purpose of this programis to renovate
30 senior units and extend their useful life for another 30 years.
He stated that the renovations include such things as upgrading
exterior lighting, boiler replacenent, ADA conpliancy, |ife/safety
upgrades, and increased energy efficiency.

Al pi ne Terrace Renovation
Ref erence No.: 36615
$6, 450, 000

M. Campbell stated that the purpose of this programis to renovate
48 famly units in Anchorage, and extend their useful life for
anot her 30 years. He stated that the renovations include replacing
siding and w ndows, interior upgrades, electrical, plunbing, and
mechani cal upgrades, and general site inprovenents.

Anchorage Fam |y Investnent Center Renovation
Ref erence No.: 36616
$2, 100, 000

M. Canpbell stated that the purpose of this Anchorage office
project is to correct code deficiencies, replace worn out
conponents and extend the useful life of the building. He stated
that these funds would bring the building “up to code and extend
its useful life.”

M. Canpbell stated that this is the last project included in the
bond package proposal.

Co-Chair Kelly asked the ratio of federal funds to AHFC funds bei ng
| everaged for the bond.

M. Canpbell responded that this information is detailed in the
“Six Year Plan” chart |ocated on page 3-51 of the booklet. He
stated that line 22 identifies the federal and Corporate debt
service over the life of the bond.

M. Canmpbell|l el aborated that during in FY 03, Corporate and federal
receipts would be $4.9 nillion and $3 mllion, respectfully. He
continued that from FY 04 through FY 08, Corporate receipts and
federal receipts would be approximately $8,784,000 and $2.4
mllion, respectfully.

SFC- 02 (15) 03/19/02



Senator Austerman asked the assessed value and the use of the
Anchorage Fam |y Investnent Center, Reference No. 36616.

M. Canmpbell stated that this building was purchased in 1988 with
HUD program receipts, and its assessed value in 1992 was $1.4
mllion.

M. Fauske furthered that this commercial building, which is
| ocated at the corner of Arctic and International Airport Roads,
currently houses AHFC of fice, warehousing, and maintenance staff.
He stated that the offices of the Famly Investnment Center are al so
| ocated in the building.

Senat or Hof f man conmented on the worthiness of the AHFC projects.
He asked whether the Corporation has information “on the un-net
housi ng needs” of the State, and whether these renovation projects
are prioritized to address those needs.

M. Fauske stated that the nobst recent housing needs’ study was
conducted in 1992, and it reflected a needs assessnent anounting to
between $3.5 and $5 billion, primarily in rural areas rather than
urban areas, across the State. He stated that the projects in the
proposed bond package specifically address properties owned by the
State. He infornmed the Conmttee that the fastest grow ng segnent
of Al aska’s population is senior citizens, and he contended that
AHFC aggressively attenpts to “stay ahead” of this statew de trend
by suppl yi ng seni or housing, from Barrow to Ketchi kan; however, he
stated, AHFC has estimates rather than exact popul ati on nunbers.

Senat or Hof fman asked whether the AHFC Board determnes this
bondi ng proposition to be the best use of $55 mllion.

M. Fauske replied that Corporation staff presented these projects
to the AHFC Board based on the position that these State-owned
facilities require maintenance funding. He stressed that due to
“the friendliest interest rate environnent” in years, staff
proposed that the Board |everage federal dollars conbined with
corporate receipts to sell bonds and conplete the ten-year plan “at
a cost that would be significantly less” than if the projects “were
staged” over tine. He stated that this is considered to be the best
use of funds.

M. Fauske inforned the Committee that the Corporation’ s annua
debt service requests historically range between $10 to $14
mllion, and he declared, the annual debt service paynents for this
ten-project bond package would be less than the historical debt
service expenditures. He encouraged the Coormittee to consider the
positive inpact this single bond package would have on the

SFC- 02 (16) 03/19/02



Corporation’s annual debt service paynent, and he explai ned that
extending the duration of the bonds through FY 08 all ows the annual
debt service anmount to be reduced; thereby allow ng AHFC to provide
funds to the State for needed water and sewer projects. He
reiterated that this bond proposal is considered to be an effective
use of funds.

Senator Austerman asked for further information regarding
adm nistrative costs, specifically whether existing staff could
adm nister the program or whether an expanded staff would be
required. He restated the opinion that admnistrative costs rangi ng
from20 to 24 percent of project’s total cost are high.

M. Weir responded that approval of this bond request would all ow
the Corporation to develop long-term staffing needs as opposed to
making staffing decisions on a short-term annual basis. He
clarified that hiring additional staff is not anticipated, as the
current fifteen project admnistrators in the construction
division, assisted by naintenance enployees, would be able to
manage the projects. He asserted that managenent and project design
requi renents account for a significant percentage of a budget.

Senator Hoffrman asked the expected conpletion date of these
proj ects.

M. Wir stated that the conpletion date for the ten projects is
anticipated to be 2007 as, he qualified, projects would be phased
over time in order to not overburden existing staff or renove a
substanti al anmount of public housing offline at the sane tine.

M. Canpbell stressed that by 2007, all the wupgrades and
renovations required for State housing facilities would be
conpl eted, and only on-goi ng mai nt enance needs woul d be required at
that tine.

Suppl enent al Housi ng Devel opnent Program

$4, 500, 000 Cor porate Receipts

Ref erence No.: 6323

Proj ect Type: Construction

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002-06/30/2007

The purpose of the programis to supplenent federal housing
funds provided to Regi onal Housing Authorities to ensure safe,
decent, affordabl e housing throughout Al aska.

M. Canpbell noted that this project wuld provide for the

SFC- 02 (17) 03/19/02



construction of 400 affordable hones in twenty different urban and
rural conmmunities. He stated that on-site water and sewer
facilities, road access, energy efficient design features, and
el ectrical distribution systens would be included. He stated that
t hese funds woul d be provided to the Regi onal Housing Authority to
suppl emrent up to 20-percent of devel opnent costs. He comented that
this funding would not be applied to project adm nistrative costs.

M. Fauske informed the Comnmttee that AHFC has recently devel oped
a relationship with the USDA Rural Devel opnent Council and the
Denali Comm ssion to better coordinate projects involving State,
federal, and |local agencies in an attenpt to | everage the maxi num
| evel of funding available through each entity. He continued that
this effort involves the coordination of such things as timng a
project to econom ze efforts. He stated that a joint presentation
fromthese entities would be forthcom ng.

M. Canpbell stated that this funding request is at the sane | eve
as the FY 02 authorization; however, he shared with the Conmttee
that the participating Regional Housing Authorities have supplied
AHFC with a list of needs exceeding $11 mlli on.

Low I ncome Weat heri zati on Program
$5, 800, 000
$1, 800, 000 Federal Receipts
$4, 000. 000 Cor porate Receipts
Ref erence No.: 6332
Project Type: Renovation and Renodeling
Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002-06/30/2007
The purpose of the programis to provide cost effective energy
i nprovenents to hones of |lowincome famlies.

M. Canpbell stated that this funding would provide for
i nprovenents in resident health and safety as well as inproving
durability and | ongevity of housing by replacing such things as 500
unsafe heating systens and installing carbon nonoxide and snoke
det ectors.

M. Canpbell stated that this request is an increase of $1 mllion
over the FY 02 authorization.

Senator Austerman asked whether AHFC is able to track the
ef fectiveness of the energy efficiency inprovenents.

ROBERT L. BREAN, Director, Di vi sion of Research & Rura

SFC- 02 (18) 03/19/02



Devel opnent, Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation, responded that the
Di vision, which oversees the |owincome weatherization program
noni tors sone energy saving prograns; however, he noted, that each
house is different and it is difficult to apply a single standard.
He continued that the best gauge of success is to conpare the
anount of fuel purchased fromone year to the next. He stated that
i n nost cases, the weatherization inprovenent investnent does not
usual |y exceed $1,000; therefore the savings “payback on this snal
investnent is fairly considerable” in terns of the follow ng year’s
fuel bill savings.

Senator W1 ken asked whether the federal noney identified for this
request requires a State match

M. Brean answered that no match is required, but rather, the
federal noney is part of an annual weatherization inprovenent
al l ocation that does specify a maxi mnum nonetary limt per unit. He
continued that because of the federal Iimt, Corporation noney is
frequently required to conplete a unit’s weatherization needs.

Senator WIken stated that over a six-year time period, this
request woul d equal approxinmately $35 mllion; however, the program
description specifies the need for $5.4 nmllion. He asked the
Division to revisit the nunbers in the description.

Senior Citizen s Housing Devel opnment Fund ( SCHDF)

$1, 975, 000 Cor porate Receipts

Ref erence No.: 6334

Project Type: Transitional

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Service

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

The purpose of the program is to provide funds for the
devel opment of senior citizen housing.

M. Canpbell commented that the projected outcone of this program
woul d i nclude such things as the purchase of building sites and
building materials, site preparation, and rehabilitation and/or
construction of housing.

M. Fauske interjected that the housing needs assessnent study,
which was referred to in earlier testinmony, is |ocated on page 3-21
of the report. He stated that the 1996 study specified the need for
an additional 1,000 units of senior housing with a forecast of the
need for an additional 3,300 units by the year 2010.

Seni or and Statew de Deferred Mi ntenance and Renovati on
$500, 000 Federal Receipts

SFC- 02 (19) 03/19/02



Ref erence No.: 6339

Project Type: Deferred Mintenance

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 — 06/ 30/2007

The purpose of this project is to reduce deferred mai nt enance
and address small renovation projects, in accordance wth
AHFC s 10-year plan, at several facilities utilized by senior
citizens and | owincome famlies.

M. Canpbell stated that this funding request differs from the
projects presented in the bond package because it is entirely
funded by federal receipts. He stated that this project would
provide funds for building security, accessibility nodifications,
energy efficiency upgrades, nechanical system upgrades, site
i nprovenents, and general physical upgrades that woul d suppl enent
the ten-year plan projects.

RECESS 10: 25 AM/ 4:14 PM

HUD Federal HOMVE Grant Program
$3, 909, 000

$3, 159, 000 Federal Receipts

$ 750, 000 Corporate Receipts
Ref erence No.: 6347
Proj ect Type: Housi ng/ Soci al Services
Cat egory: Renewal and Repl acenent
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/02/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
The purpose of the program is to expand the supply of
af fordabl e, | ow and noderate-i ncone housing and to strengthen
the ability of the State to design and inplenent strategies to
achi eve an adequate supply of safe, energy-efficient, and
af f or dabl e housi ng.

M. Canpbell read from the sunmary report that the projected
outcones of the project include: developing “affordable rental
housi ng by fundi ng the devel opnent gap; preserving | owincone hones
t hrough noderate rehabilitation; and achi eving home ownership for
| ower-income famlies by providing down paynents and cl osi ng cost
assi st ance.”

M. Canpbell stated that this statewide program is overseen by
AHFC, and he noted that the Minicipality of Anchorage’s hone
programis not included in this project.

Paci fic Terrace — Phase |

SFC- 02 (20) 03/19/02



$500, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 35784

Proj ect Type: Construction

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces

Locati on: Kodi ak

El ection District: Kodiak

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

The purpose of the program is to provide funds for the
repl acenent of 40 units of fam |y housing in Kodi ak.

M. Campbell remarked that this two-year federal receipt project to
simlar to projects included in the bond package; however, he noted
that the funding consists exclusively of federal funds resulting
fromthe sale of other units.

HUD Capital Fund Program (fornerly CGP)

$500, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 6342

Proj ect Type: Renewal and Repl acenent

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

The purpose of this program is to renovate and nodernize
publ i c housing units.

M. Campbell stated that these funds woul d support projects simlar
to those in the bond package; however, these funds consist of
specific federal funds.

Federal and O her Conpetitive Grants
$4, 250, 000

$1, 250, 000 Cor por ate Receipts

$3, 000, 000 Federal Receipts
Ref erence No.: 6348
Project Type: Health and Safety
Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
The purpose of this programis to allow AHFC to apply for HUD
ot her federal agency, and private foundation grants that
target the housing needs, and supportive services, of |ow
i ncone and speci al needs groups; such as senior citizens, the
mentally, physically, or developnentally disabled or the

honel ess. AHFC will also apply for energy related grants as
they relate to housing. Wen required, AHFC will provide the
needed matching funds. Sone of the funds received will be

passed through to | ocal non-profit sub-grantee organi zations

SFC- 02 (21) 03/19/02



t hat deliver housing and/or services.

M. Canpbell stated that this project would provide funds for HUD
supportive housing as well as Housing Opportunities for Persons
with AIDS, USDA Housing Preservation Grant Prograns, and the grant
mat ch program He noted that this funding level is consistent with
t he previous year’s funding.

Competitive Grants for Public Housing
$1, 000, 000

$250, 000 Cor porate Receipts

$750, 000 Federal Receipts
Ref erence No.: 6350
Project Type: Health and Safety
Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
The purpose of this programis to allow AHFC to apply for HUD
ot her federal agency, and private foundation grants that
target the housing needs of |owincome and special needs
groups: such as senior citizens, the nentally ill, disabled,
or the honeless who are eligible for public and/or assisted
housi ng. AHFC will al so apply for grants to prevent crinme and
substance abuse in public housing and assist public housing
famlies attain econom c self-sufficiency. Wen required, AHFC
wi |l provide the needed natch.

M. Canpbell stated that this project would provide funds for
public housi ng needs such as a senior services coordinator and a
drug elimnation program He stated that the level of this request
mat ches the FY 02 authori zati on.

Energy Efficiency Mnitoring Research

$300, 000 Cor porate Receipts

Ref erence No.: 6351

Proj ect Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/02/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

The purpose of this project is to conduct research, analysis,
i nformati on di ssem nation and interchange anong nenbers of the
i ndustry, as well as, between the industry and the public.

M. Canpbell stated that this funding, requested at the FY 02
aut horization level, would provide for such things as energy
efficient designs for hones throughout a diverse geographic area to
provi de for occupant health, confort and dwelling durability.

SFC- 02 (22) 03/19/02



State Energy Program (SEP) Special Projects
$180, 000
$ 30,000 Corporate Receipts
$150, 000 Federal Receipts
Ref erence No.: 32526
Proj ect Type: Health and Safety
Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/02/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
The purpose of this program is to allow the State to
participate in special project grants offered by the Federal
Department of Energy to pronote energy related technol ogies
and research.

M. Canpbell read that the projected outcone of this project
i ncl udes providi ng advancenents in building technology as well as
codes and standards, w nd and power technol ogy, renewable energy
for renote areas, and/or transportation technology. He stated this
request is at the sane |level as the FY 02 authorization.

Central Terrace/ Fai rnount Renovati on

$750, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 6345

Project Type: Renovation and Renodeling

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces

Location: Anchorage

El ection District: Anchorage Areaw de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

The purpose of this programis to renovate 19 single-famly
houses and sell themto | owincone honebuyers.

M. Canpbell started that this funding is the result of sales
proceeds and woul d be used to renovate the remaining units in the
conpl ex. He stated that conpletion of the project would result in
inproved building accessibility, inproved energy efficiency,
improved living environnent for residents, upgrades to flooring,
appl i ances, and bathroons, and a reduction in long term operating
costs.

Housi ng Loan Program

$4, 000, 000 Cor porate Receipts

Ref erence No.: 35838

Project Type: Transitional

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces
Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

SFC- 02 (23) 03/19/02



Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2003

The purpose of this programis to increase home ownership for
| ow-i ncome borrowers by subsidizing interest rates based on
famly income and famly size.

M. Canpbell stated that this project wuld increase the
affordability of housing purchases for |low to noderate-incone
famlies, and would provide funds to “lower the interest rates on
AHFC nortgage prograns to attract |oan volune and generate net
I ncone.”

M. Fauske informed the Conmittee that this new program is the
result of reductions of subsidized interest rate prograns in FY 02
due to the use of corporate arbitrage. He furthered that “in the
| ast four years, AHFC has generated approximately $177 mllion in
arbitrage throughout the Al askan econony rather than needing to
rebate those nonies back to the federal governnment.” He stated that
in order to maintain and further the opportunity to sustain subsidy
programs for individuals such as senior citizens or the disabled
who would not normally be able to qualify for a normal program
these progranms must be supplanted with sonme of the arbitrage
nonies. He stated that it is the goal of AHFC “to continue to
generate arbitrage whenever possible; however, it is becomng a
limted coomodity.” He informed the Conmttee that, “repealing the
restrictions placed on arbitrage i s another recomendation that the
federal Ml ennium Housing Commission would be presenting to
Congress. He noted that the intent of this programis to try and
replace, as well as to try to nmaintain, interest-rate subsidy
prograns to provide for affordability of hone ownership, and
conpl etion of projects where subsidies are required because there
is not a conventional market program available to support them

Senator W/ ken asked what financial returns are projected fromthis
$4 million investnent.

JOHN  BI TNEY, Legi sl ative Liaison, Al aska Housing Finance
Cor poration, Departnent of Revenue stated that this program is
projected “to raise, in the |oans captured, about $400 million a
year in additional net inconme over a 30-year life of the |oan.”

Senator WI ken asked what annual return on investnent this woul d
generat e.

M. Bitney responded that it woul d generate $400, 000 annually, or a
ten percent rate of return.

Honel ess Assi stance Program
$1, 000, 000

SFC- 02 (24) 03/19/02



$500, 000 Cor porate Receipts
$500, 000 Mental Health Trust Fund Receipts
Ref erence No.: 6359
Project Type: Transitional
Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
The purpose of this program is to support prograns that
prevent honel essness by providing assistance to famlies in
i mm nent danger of becomng honeless, or those who are
currently honel ess.

M. Canpbell stated that this request is an increase over prior
year authorizations as the Mental Health Trust Fund has doubl ed the
anount that would be available for this program and has requested
AHFC “to do the sane.”

Senator W I ken asked whether this is “a required or suggested
mat ch.”

M. Canpbell replied that it is a suggested match. He referred the
Commttee to the list of applicants, listed on page 3-44 of the
report, who have requested and woul d be receiving the funds.

Vi ce-Chair Ward asked for confirmation that the funding would be
distributed in the prioritization order presented in the report.

M . Canpbel | concurred.

Beneficiary and Speci al Needs Housi ng

$800, 000 Cor porate Receipts

Ref erence No.: 6360

Project Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

The purpose of this programis to provide funds for Al askan
non-profit service providers and housing developers to
i ncrease housing opportunities to Alaska Mental Health Trust
beneficiaries and other special needs popul ati ons t hroughout
Al aska.

M. Canpbell stated that this funding would result in congregate
and supportive housing for people with such things as nental
i1l ness and physical and/or devel opnental disabilities, as well as
transitional housing for recovering alcoholics and addicts. He

SFC- 02 (25) 03/19/02



stated that this funding level has historically been $1.5 mllion
however, although the needs are simlar, the FY 03 request has been
reduced as a neans to stay within the FY 03 AHFC Senate Majority
budget allocation of $96.3 mllion.

M. Canpbell stated that this concludes the Corporation’s capita
project funding requests. He expressed that two additional projects
are identified in the report, but which would be presented by the
Departnent of Health and Social Services.

Senator Austerman, referring to the Housing Loan Programrequest,
Ref erence No. 35838, asked whether the $400,000 annual incone
projected fromthe programis included in the total AHFC funding
transfers identified on page 3-53 in the Departnment’s FY 03 Budget
Draft.

M. Campbell clarified that these funds nust be added to the total
“Transfers” anount.

Senat or Aust erman asked whet her any ot her projects should be added
to the budget totals.

M. Canmpbell replied that other “total” conponent considerations,
in addition to the transfers and the capital projects, “would be
the debt service for the capital projects” as well as nonies for
t he Departnent of Environmental Conservation prograns.

M. Fauske clarified that while the projects being presented tota
an aggregate anount of $55 million; he explained that this is not
the actual dollar anobunt to be spent on the FY 03 projects. He
referred the Commttee to the debt service schedul e on page 3-51

Senat or Austernman asked for further information regarding the $14
mllion in AHFC dividends to be expended on projects.

M. Canmpbell clarified that this anmount is the total for all non-
construction projects.

Senat or Austerman asked the actual total ampunt of AHFC divi dends
proposed to be expended in FY 03.

M. Canpbell responded that the total dividend to be expended is
$55.2 million with a debt service on that anount of $4.9 mllion,
plus $3 million of federal receipts.

Senator Austerman asked for further «clarification, as the

understanding is that bonds would be sold to generate the $55
mllion.

SFC- 02 (26) 03/19/02



M . Canpbel | concurred.

Senat or Austerman asked, excluding the bond package, the tota
anount of AHFC dividends that would be required to fund the
proposed projects.

M. Canpbell stated that with the inclusion of the $4 mllion
identified for the Housing Loan Program and the Mental Health Bill
conponents, the total AHFC dividends required for projects would
total $18, 955,000, as identified on page 3-51.

M. Bitney furthered that the bond’ s debt service of $4,943, 000
nmust be added to this anount; therefore, the total AHFC divi dend
funding being required in FY 03 would be approximately $23 m | li on.

Departnent of Environnental Conservation

ROBERT STALNAKER, Manager, Information Systenms, D vision of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnment of Environnmental Conservati on,
stated that the Departnent’s mssion is to protect human heal th and
the environnment and, he continued, the projects are prioritized
accordingly.

Village Safe Water Feasibility Studies
$3, 319, 100
$ 830,300 AHFC Di v
$2, 488, 800 Fed Rcpts
Ref erence No.: 33821
Project Type: Pl anning
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
Grants to communities for preparing engineering feasibility
studies. The studies identify designs and operating costs for
sanitation facilities that are appropriate for the comunity.
On- goi ng project
State Match Required

Village Safe Water Project Adm nistration
$2, 007, 300
$ 501,800 AHFC Div
$1, 505, 500 Fed Rcpts
Ref erence No.: 33820
Project Type: Pl anning
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de

SFC- 02 (27) 03/19/02



Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

Village Safe Water project admnistration is the operating
cost of delivering Village Safe Water services to communities.
These funds pay for Village Safe Water engineers and ot her
program staff, as well as associated travel, contracts,
supplies, and equi pnent.

On- goi ng project

State Match Required

Village Safe Water Projects
$64, 811, 700
$16, 203, 800 AHFC Di v
$48, 607, 900 Fed Rcpts
Ref erence No.: 33822
Project Type: Construction
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
Grants to communities for designing and constructing water,
sewer, and solid waste facilities
On- goi ng project
State Match Required

M. Stal naker explained that these three projects would jointly
adm nister a programto provide grants to communities for design
and construction of water, wastewater, and solid waste facilities
in addition to providing for program adm nistration costs.

SFC 02 # 36, Side A 04:36 PM

M. Stal naker continued that the federal funding conponent in each
of these projects requires a State mtch. He stated that
$17,535,900 of the total $70,138,100 request amount is the State
mat chi ng portion consisting of Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation
funds.

M. Stal naker expl ained that Project Reference No. 33824 addresses
the feasibility studies’ portion of the program Project Reference
No. 33822 addresses the construction portion of the program and
Proj ect Reference No. 33820 addresses the adm nistrative costs of
t he program

Muni ci pal Water, Sewer and Solid Waste Matching G ant Projects
$23, 921, 900
$3, 865, 900 AHFC Di v

SFC- 02 (28) 03/19/02



$8, 517, 800 Fed Rcpts
$2, 839, 700 G F Match
$8, 698, 500 Gen Fund
Ref erence No.: 33824
Proj ect Type: Construction
Cat egory: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
Grants to larger comunities for nunicipal water, sewer, and
solid waste planning, design, and construction projects.
Grants require a local match of 15% - 50% of project costs.
On- Goi ng Proj ect
State Match Required

M. Stal naker stated that this is an on-goi ng programthrough which
the State provides financial assistance to large incorporated
comunities to address water, sewer, and solid waste needs.

St at ewi de Muni ci pal Solid Waste Regionalization Pl an

$150, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 35800

Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Heal th/ Safety

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

This contractual effort would build upon the 1999 study by the
Al aska chapter of the Solid Waste Associ ation of North America
to | ook specifically at areas where regional nunicipal solid
waste landfills could be constructed, or an existing |andfil
expanded to serve nultiple conunities. Regional landfills
would have the econony of scale to support required
mai nt enance and operation cost.

One-Ti me Proj ect

M. Stal naker stated that this new request would “provide for an
anal ysis and devel opment of a plan to identify potential areas for

regi onal nmunicipal solid waste landfill facilities.” He inforned
the Committee that, currently, 174 of the existing 243 mnuni ci pal
landfill facilities serve small communities, and of that nunber,

only 21 percent are permtted. He stated that the renaining
facilities are “dunp sites.” He continued that this study would
provide information to |locate and develop suitable locations to
serve as regional landfill sites, whose operations “could be better
controlled and permtted.”

St at ewi de Contam nated Sites O eanup

SFC- 02 (29) 03/19/02



$5, 000, 000 G | /Haz Fd

Ref erence No.: 33826

Proj ect Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Heal th/ Safety

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

This project provides funding for assessnment and cl eanup of
contam nation at State-owned facilities and at other sites
where the responsible party is unknown or has refused to take
appropriate action. The work will include site assessnent,
devel opnent of corrective action plans, nonitoring of cleanup,
and closure of sites which are nost threatening to public

heal th and the environnent. Ceanup work will be conducted by
private specialists under contract to the departnment and al
recoverable costs wll be sought from non-state agency

responsi ble parties, as required by statute.
On- Goi ng Proj ect

M. Stal naker stated that Response Fund funds support this on-going
project that focuses on the identification and cl eanup of statew de
contam nated oil and hazardous substance sites.

Spill Prevention — Best Avail abl e Technol ogy Anal ysis
$250,000 G| /Haz Fd

Ref erence No.: 35723

Proj ect Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Heal th/ Safety

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2004

This project provides funding for a review and apprai sal by
the departnent of oil spill prevention and response
technol ogies applied worldwide to ensure that proven new
technol ogi es are considered for use by regul ated operators in
Al aska. The departnent’s review and appraisal of energing
technol ogi es, such as well control and enhanced fast-water
contai nment boom w Il include appropriate studies, surveys
and anal yses, and the sponsorship of a technol ogy conference
to provide the opportunity for interested parties to present
data on these technologies. The departnment will issue its
findings and allow interested parties to submt comments prior
to adopti ng new technol ogi es under 18 AAC 75. 447.
One-Ti me Proj ect

M. Stal naker noted that this project would assist industries by

determ ning “the best available oil spill prevention and response
technol ogy, suited for Alaska, and to prepare a report of the

SFC- 02 (30) 03/19/02



findings.”

Corrosion Monitoring and Control — Best Management Practices
$200,000 Q| /Haz Fd

Ref erence No.: 35822

Project Type: Health and Safety

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

The project provides funding for a technical review of
corrosion nonitoring and control technologies specific to
Al aska’s industrial operations, and wll result in the
devel opnment of a manual on the subject for wuse by the
regul ated conmunity and other interested stakehol ders. Due to
the aging of the oil industry infrastructure in Al aska,
corrosion-rel ated failures are becomng a nore common cause of
spills. The best opportunity to mtigate the effects of oil
spills on public health and the environnent is through an
aggressive oil spill prevention program Corrosion nonitoring,
corrosion control, and |eak-detection technologies are
critical parts of such a program

One-Ti me Proj ect

M. Stal naker stated that this project would supply a technica

review of corrosion-control nonitoring for the oil industry and
create a manual for spill control response nethods.
Petrol eum Storage Tank Spill Prevention Standards Revi ew

$50, 000 G |/ Haz Fd

Ref erence No.: 35821

Proj ect Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 -06/ 30/ 2007

This project provides funding for a technical review and
determ nation of the applicability of the American Petrol eum
Institute (APlI) standards for oil storage tank inspection and
new tank construction to Alaska conditions. O her
jurisdictions have determ ned that sonme aspects of these
i ndustry standards, such as the use of cathodic protection and
linings, require nodifications or are not applicable to | ocal

conditions. A review of the APl literature is necessary to
ensure that Al aska regul ations reference the correct industry
standards, enhancing the prevention of oil storage tank
spills.

One-Ti me Proj ect

SFC- 02 (31) 03/19/02



M. Stal naker comented that this project would provide for a
technical review of the nost recent industry standards regarding
petrol eum storage tank construction, inspection, and spil
prevention. He noted that this review would be helpful to the
i ndustry by up-dating standards that are applicable to the industry
and to the weat her conditions in Al aska.

Fine Particul ate Monitoring

$375, 000 Fed Rcpts

Ref erence No.: 33827

Project Type: Health and Safety

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2004

Fine particulate matter is a by product of conmbustion and has
been linked to respiratory ailnments and various cancers. This
federally mandated project provides installation and operation
of fine particulate nonitoring equi pnent throughout the state
to evaluate the risk to public health in Al aska.

On- Goi ng Proj ect

M. Stal naker stated that this federally nmandated program woul d
provide for the receipt and expenditure of federal funds for the
installation and operation of fine particulate nonitoring equi pnent
t hroughout the State. He stated that this project works in
conjunction with other federal agencies to determ ne whether the
| evel of fine particulates in nonitored areas correlates wth
heal th i ssues specific to the area.

Senat or Lenman asked whether any results of this on-going nonitoring
effort have been published.

M. Stal naker responded that if this information is available, it
woul d be provided.

Language Section: Al aska Drinking Water Fund
$9, 663, 000
$1, 010, 500 DW Bond
$8, 052, 500 Fed Rcpts
$ 600,000 G F Match
Ref erence No.: 35266
Project Type: Health and Safety
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

SFC- 02 (32) 03/19/02



Al aska Drinking Water Fund capitalization
On- Goi ng Proj ect
State Match Required

M. Stalnaker stated that this is a request to capitalize the
Al aska Drinking Water Fund.

Language Section: Al aska Cl ean Water Fund
$9, 720, 000
$1, 620, 000 CW Bond
$8, 100, 000 Fed Rcpts
Ref erence No.: 35265
Project Type: Health and Safety
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002-06/30/2007
Al aska Cl ean Water Fund capitalization
On- Goi ng Proj ect
State Match Required

M. Stalnaker stated that this is a request to capitalize the
Al aska C ean Water Fund.

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities

Al aska Marine H ghway System — Vessel Over haul and
Rehabilitation

$5, 500, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 30624

Project Type: Renewal and Repl acenent

Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 12/31/2003

Annual mai nt enance and overhaul on vessels and at term nals,
particularly conmponent or system failures which will inpact
service in the short term

On- goi ng proj ect

NANCY SLAGLE, Director, Division of Admnistrative Service,
Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities, stated that
t his annual request would provide funds for the required overhau

and mai ntenance work on the nine vessels conprising the Al aska
Marine H ghway System fleet. She noted that, as the vessels age,
t he mai nt enance needs increase, and she informed the Comm ttee that
the endeavor requires a mnimm of six-weeks per vessel on an
annual or every-other-year basis. She stated that the work includes

SFC- 02 (33) 03/19/02



such things as painting of decks and hulls, replacenent of worn
parts, and engine overhauls and dismantlenent for Coast Guard
i nspection and re-certification.

Ms. Slagle furthered that this request would provide funds to
perform annual maintenance on twenty termnal buildings. She
detailed that the proposed upgrades pertain to such things as
repl acenment of freshwater |ines, heating systens, and berth repair,
and neasures to offset corrosion of underwater equipnent.

Ms. Slagle continued that funding woul d al so address safety issues
onboard the ships such as non-skid protection on wal kways, safety
handrails, and video caneras being placed on car-decks to ensure
that the vessel’s doors are closed. She remarked that the request
woul d additionally provide for inplenentation of a conmputer program
to track and schedul e vessel maintenance.

Senat or Leman asked whether the mpjority of the work would be
conducted at either the Ketchi kan or Seward shi pyards.

Ms. Slagle confirmed that woul d be the case.

Senat or Leman asked whet her these shipyards have provided quality
wor kmanship in a tinmely manner

KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities, responded that the Departnent has been “very
satisfied” by the quality of work conducted by the shipyards. He
noted that, wth the exception of the Tustunena whose overhaul work
has been done in Seward, nost of the overhaul work has been
conducted at the Ketchi kan shi pyard.

Safety Inspection of State Omed H gh Ri sk Facilities

$200, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 33855

Project Type: Health and Safety

Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

Field inspection of approximately 25 high risk buildings. This
will include structural analysis of each facility to determ ne
if they may be subject to catastrophic failure.

Phased proj ect

M. Parkan stated that the collapse of a maintenance station roof a

few years prior, under a heavy snow load, initiated the need for
this request. He stated that 25 buildings received inspection in FY

SFC- 02 (34) 03/19/02



02 and this funding would provide funds to inspect an additional 25
St at e- owned bui | di ngs considered to be at high risk of failure. He
informed the Commttee that three of the buildings inspected in FY
02 were found to be in need of imediate repair to prevent
coll apse, and that the cost to repair those buil dings was incl uded
in the FY 02 suppl enental budget request.

Senator Leman, referring to comments in the backup material, asked
why Dblueprints for sone of these State-owned buildings are not
avai | abl e.

M. Parkan responded that blueprint availability depends on when
the buildings were built, as sonme are very old, and whether they
were purchased from other entities that m ght not have provided
bl ueprints.

Senat or Lerman opined that blueprint availability would depend on
how and when the facility was acquired.

Ms. Slagle furthered that records for sonme buil dings, such as the
St at e-owned mai ntenance facility in None that is nore than 60 years
old, are difficult to maintain.

Ms. Slagle nmentioned that information is available pertaining to
construction tinmelines and repair costs for the three buildings
that were identified in FY 02 to be in need of imrediate repair.

Vice-Chair Ward inquired as to what factors are used to determ ne
which facilities woul d be i nspected each year.

Ms. Sl agle responded that the ranking is based on such risk factors
as age, location, and the systens operating within the facility.

Vi ce-Chair Ward asked the ranking of the 60-year old None facility.
Ms. Slagle responded that this facility ranks high on the |ist of
facilities in need of inspection. She stated that, while a copy of
the ranking list was supplied to Cormittee nmenbers in FY 02, the
list could be re-supplied to Commttee nenbers.

Senat or Austerman comruni cated that the Departnent has identified
the None facility for closure under their budget reduction plan.

Ms. Slagle stated that further analysis would be undertaken.

Senat or Leman asked whether the funding provides for Departnent
engi neering staff expenses or for contractual engineers.

SFC- 02 (35) 03/19/02



M. Parkan replied that a private engineering firmin Fairbanks is
currently under contract with the State to performthe assessnents.

Mat erial Stockpiles — Dalton H ghway, denn H ghway and Tok
Cut of f

$600, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 33853

Project Type: Deferred Mintenance

Category: Transportation

Location: Dalton H ghway

Election District: Rural Interior

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

Pay for crushing materials used for maintenance that is not
rei mbursabl e by federal funding. Materials stockpiles will be
contracted in conjunction with major federal-aid highway
projects on the Dalton H ghway, d enn H ghway, and Tok Cutoff.
Phased proj ect

M. Parkan stated that this on-going and cost effective program
allows the State to stockpile nmaterials in areas in which
contractors and their equipnent are currently conducting road
construction projects. He stated that by using contractors who are
working in an area, the State could stockpile materials for $10 to
$13 per yard as conpared to $18 to $20 per yard for an i ndependent
stockpile. He stated that the stockpiles provide materials that
woul d be used to repair roads throughout the year.

Senat or Leman asked whether this type of project is awarded at the
time of the corresponding construction project or if rates are
negotiated with a contractor after they are on site.

M. Parkan responded that this informati on woul d be provided to the
Committee, as he is not famliar with the process.

Ai rport Deferred Mintenance

$1, 500, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 30633

Project Type: Deferred Mintenance

Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 09/30/2003

To repair the backl og of maintenance itens that cannot be done
t hrough the operating budget funding |evels. Typical itens are
pavenent repairs, lighting repairs, fencing repairs, and bird
and ani mal control.

On- goi ng project

SFC- 02 (36) 03/19/02



M. Parkan stated that this annual request would address
approximately $25 mllion of total deferred naintenance needs at
rural airports.

Ms. Slagle noted that this funding addresses mai nt enance needs such
as brush cutting at rural airports, mscellaneous el ectrical needs,
and equi pnent needs specific to a rural airport that are not
associ ated with on-goi ng regul ar mai ntenance projects. She stated
that runway painting at Ganble airport, leveling and resurfacing
gravel apron work at Bettles, and brush and tree renoval at Qul kana
would fall into this category of needs.

M. Parkan noted that these projects are usually “out-of-the-
ordinary” and, therefore, not included in the routine naintenance
contract agreenents established at nost of these airports.

Vice-Chair Ward inquired as to how bird, and specifically animal,
control is managed at these airports.

Ms. Slagle responded that bird and animal control have proven
difficult to manage. She exanpled the variety of nethods being used
to address the situation such as using explosives as a nethod of
bird control and fencing being used to prevent aninmals from
venturing onto airport runways.

M. Parkan interjected that culverts are also utilized as a
preventive neasure agai nst beavers.

Senat or Austerman inquired why the FY 03 request is significantly
hi gher than the FY 02 budget anount; specifically whether the
requested funding level has traditionally been $1.5 mllion; but
t he authori zation was granted at a | ower anount.

Ms. Slagle responded that the requested level of funding has
hi storically been reduced during the budget process.

Senat or Austerman asked the FY 02 funding | evel that the Departnent
requested for this project.

Ms. Sl agl e responded that the FY 02 funding request was for either
$1 million or $1.5 mllion.

Senator Hoffrman affirnmed that this request has been traditionally
“trinmred back.”

Enmer gency and Non- Routine Repairs

$1, 000, 000 General Fund
Ref erence No.: 30634

SFC- 02 (37) 03/19/02



Proj ect Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 09/ 30/2003

Repairs to transportation facilities needed because of natural
di sasters, such as floods, snow, w nd, earthquakes, etc. These
repairs would be ineligible for federal funds. Al so used to
neet inmm nent failure caused by deferred nmai ntenance.

On- goi ng proj ect

M. Parkan informed the Conmttee that this request woul d provide
funding for energency repairs to roads resulting from such things
as flood or aval anche damage.

Ms. Slagle elaborated that this request al so includes funding for
energency repairs to airports and facilities.

Senat or Austerman asked the Departnent to supply the Commttee with
a list of the enmergency repairs and associ ated expenses that have
been perfornmed within the previous four or five-years.

Ms. Sl agle responded that a Iist would be supplied.

Facilities Deferred Miintenance and Critical Repairs
$800, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 30632

Project Type: Deferred Mintenance

Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 09/30/2003

To address the nobst wurgent, critical repairs on state
bui | di ngs.

On- goi ng project

Ms. Slagle stated that this request addresses deferred nai ntenance
needs for State facilities. She noted that the Departnent’s 600
of fice buildings, road mai ntenance stations, materials |abs, and
joint-use facilities have total deferred nmaintenance needs
anounting to approximately $50 million dollars.

Har bor Deferred Mai ntenance

$1, 000, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 7090

Project Type: Deferred Mintenance
Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

SFC- 02 (38) 03/19/02



El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/30/2003

To address backl ogged deferred nmi ntenance for state-owned
har bor s.

On- goi ng project

Ms. Slagle stated that the backlog of deferred nai ntenance needs
for harbors totals approxinmately $45 nmillion, and she stated that
this request specifically addresses dredging and el ectrical work
repairs in Hoonah, replacenent of ranps in N nilchik, and dredging
needs in Pelican.

Hi ghway Deferred Mai ntenance

$1, 500, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 60631

Project Type: Deferred Mintenance

Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 09/30/2003

To address some of the needs that have not been handl ed
t hrough the operating budget nai ntenance funds. Typical itens
are surface and enbanknent repairs, drainage culverts and
ditch repairs, marking and sign repairs, and brushing.

On- goi ng proj ect

M. Parkan noted that this funding addresses such things as
drai nage and culverts that are not recognized as normal routine
mai nt enance requirenents, and therefore are not provided for in the
operating budget. He stated that the total of deferred nmaintenance
needs of this sort exceeds $200 mlli on.

Wi ghts and Measures Testing Unit Repl acenent
$525, 100 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 32605

Proj ect Type: Equi prment

Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007
The Weights and Measures Equipnment, which is beyond its
useabl e service life.

Phased proj ect

Ms. Slagle stated that this funding is needed to repl ace and update
ol d Weights and Measures equi pnent used in netrology |abs to test
such things as flow neters used in the fuel industry, and the
Weights and Measures field testing equipnent used to verify the

SFC- 02 (39) 03/19/02



accuracy of fish, fuel industry scales and neters.

Ms. Sl agl e exanpl ed that one of the needed pieces of equipnent is a
$200, 000 nmobil e, large-scale testing unit that is used throughout
Sout heast Al aska to test truck, contractor, freight, and fishing
scal es. She explained that the current unit, which contains 10, 000
pounds of test weights and has a hydraulic boom is old, parts are
no | onger avail able, and safety concerns arise about its operation.
She stated that this piece of equipnent is critical to the
continuance of testing and certifying of comercial scales in
Sout heast Al aska.

Vice-Chair Ward asked whether re-certification of these scal es
woul d be negatively affected were this unit not avail abl e.

Ms. Slagle stated that re-certification in Southeast Al aska would
be affected.

Cor ps of Engi neers — Harbors Program Fornul ati on

$200, 000 G F Match

Ref erence No.: 7091

Project Type: Pl anning

Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/30/2003
Participation wth the Corps of Engineers and |oca
governments in harbor breakwaters, dredging, feasibility
studi es, and program assi stance.

On- goi ng proj ect

M. Parkan stated that this request historically provided nmatching
funds to support specific projects; however, because funding for
har bor projects is being separately addressed through a harbors
bond package in FY 03, this funding would be used to assist
comunities in developing projects, determ ning whether those
projects would be eligible for federal funding, and identifying a
priority list of the projects.

Ms. Slagle furthered that matching funds would al so be provided
“for the planning assistance to states, working in cooperation with
the Corps of Engineers for assisting these conmunities in
devel oping their projects.” She voiced that sone of these projects
involve comunities such as Aniak, Little D onede, and Saint
Ceor ge.

Senator Austerman asked the match ratio of federal to State
dol | ars.

SFC- 02 (40) 03/19/02



Ms. Slagle stated that the match is a one-to-one ratio; however,
she informed the Commttee that this is a local community match
rather than a federal match

Senator Austerman asked for clarification that this project
i nvolves a local community match rather than a Corps of Engineers’
fundi ng mat ch.

Ms. Slagle clarified that this is a Corps of Engi neers one-to-one
mat ch; however, the portion owed by the State is shared between the
State and the community.

Vi ce-Chair Ward asked the testifier to prepare an analysis of the
mat ch and supply it to the Committee.

Ms. Sl agl e agreed.

Moose Pass Mai ntenance Station Closure and Site C ean-up
$600, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 33854

Project Type: Health and Safety

Category: Transportation

Locati on: Mdose Pass

El ection District: Seward, Sol dotna

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2007

The departnent has closed this station and nust responsibly
abandon the site conpletely. Project includes environnental
i nvestigation, building pre-denolition assessnent, facility
denolition, excavation and treatnment of petrol eum hydrocarbon
i npacted soils, relocation of the sand/salt stockpile, and
wel |l -installation and quarterly nonitoring.

One-Ti me Proj ect

M . Parkan noted that the Mbose Pass Station has been closed for
nore than three years, and that these funds would be used to
denmolish the building and clean up environnental hazardous
material. He noted that the facility is |ocated near the Kena
Ri ver.

St at e Equi pment Fl eet Repl acenent

$11, 800, 000 Hw Capi ti

Ref erence No.: 30628

Proj ect Type: Equi pnment

Category: Transportation

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2002 — 06/ 30/2004

SFC- 02 (41) 03/19/02



Repl acenent and/or refurbishnment of equipnent and vehicles
whi ch have reached the end of their useful life cycle and all
extensi on periods and for the continued conversion of vehicles
to alternate fuel and related alternate fuel program expenses.
On- goi ng project

M. Parkan voiced that this is an annual request to replace
equi pnent and vehi cl es.

M. Parkan noted that this concludes the Departnent’s requests, as
the federally funded transportation construction projects would not
be present ed.

Senat or W1 ken asked the current status of the Washington Street
i ntersection in Fairbanks.

MARTIN OTT, Chief, Planning & Adm nistrative Services, Northern
Regi on, Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities,
testified via tel econference from Fairbanks and responded that the
State would be advertising for a Request for Proposals (RFP) in
April 2002.

Senat or Austerman asked for further information regarding the Corps
of Engi neers — Harbors Program Fornul ati on, Reference No: 7091. He
noted that this request has decreased during the past few years
from $8 mllion to $5 mllion, with an FY 03 request of only
$200, 000. He asked how harbor projects would be funded.

M. Parkan <clarified that the harbor projects that have
historically been included in this request are proposed to be
alternatively funded through a harbor bond bill. He stated that the

$200, 000 request for conmunity planning, which has historically
been included in this request, is the only conponent renaining.

Senat or Austernman asked the FY 03 level of harbor funding being
requested in the bond bill |egislation.

M. Parkan responded that this informati on woul d be supplied to the
Committee.

Vice-Chair Ward asked for further information regarding the harbor
bond bi |

M. Parkan stated that harbor bond bills have been introduced by
the Governor and Senator Robin Taylor and that projects are
identified in both bills.

Ms. Slagle informed the Conmittee that additional Departnent

capital appropriations are being addressed in the Honel and Security
Appropriations Bill. She stated that of the proposed $41 nillion

SFC- 02 (42) 03/19/02



funding request, $38 nmillion is federal funds. She stated that
these appropriations are required for the State to conply wth
Federal Aviation Admnistration (FAA) requirenents concerning
baggage screening, security systens, closed circuit television, and
surveill ance system and other conponents.

The bill was HELD in Committee.
#

ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 05:17 PM

SFC- 02 (43) 03/19/02



